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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor
any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging
nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics

of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM. The principal means of information
dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies
are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information

on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss

howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of TeleEye Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to TeleEye
Holdings Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration

and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 2 7 & #

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. CHAN Chok Ki

Dr. MA Chi Kit

Mr. HO Ka Ho

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Dr. CHAN Cheung Fat

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor SIU Wan Chi
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = EH &

In the past financial year, TeleEye Group has continued to grow
despite the highly competitive global market conditions and the
after-effects of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”). We
continue to spend significantly in product research and development.
We have launched new products and signed up new distribution
channels. On behalf of the Board of Directors, I fully recognise the

achievements made by our management team during the year.

At the beginning of this fiscal year, we brought in a management
consultant to review the quality management system of the Company.
Intensive training and restructuring were carried out according to
international quality management standard. I am delighted to report
that the Group’s quality management system has achieved ISO
9001:2000 Certification. The Group is committed to continue
improvement in the quality of all operations. I am confident that
the Group will bring out more innovative quality products
representing a significant force in the global digital video surveillance

market.

The Group is entering its tenth year of business. We are
organising a series of events to strengthen the TeleEye image and
market positions. I have every reasons to believe TeleEye continues
to grow and will bring in solid long-term returns for shareholders. I
would like to thank our investors for their continuous support to

the Group over the years.

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 September 2004
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBt R o

Business Review

The Group achieved growth under the more competitive global
market condition. Strong competitions mainly come from Digital
Video Recorder and Network Camera manufacturers. Price pressure
in various markets results in lower profit margin. In view of the
competitions, the Group has introduced more new products, focused
on deeper penetration of existing market and expanded its

distribution networks.

During the year, the Group attended major exhibitions, organised
promotion seminars, launched new products and developed new
sales channels. To have a better control of the United Kingdom
(“UK”) market, the UK subsidiary has changed its role from a

supporting unit to a direct sales unit.

The Group has reviewed its quality management system according
to international standard. It has achieved ISO 9001:2000 certification
and is committed to continuous improvement on product and service

quality.

Financial Review

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2004 increased
by 15% to approximately HK$30,458,000 (2003: HK$26,447,000)
as compared with last financial year. This demonstrates our effort

in product diversification and global expansion.

TeleEye video surveillance systems and TeleEye cameras
generated approximately 72% (2003: 85%) and approximately 17%
(2003: 4%) of the Group’s turnover, respectively. With deeper global
penetration, the Group’s turnover generated from the 2 largest

geographical segments diluted from 65% to 55%.

On a quarter-on-quarter comparison, turnover for the three
months ended 30 June 2004 amounted to approximately
HK$8,568,000 representing an increase of 46% compared with the
same quarter last financial year. It was due to our launch of new

products and economic recovery from the outbreak of SARS in Asia.

In comparing with the quarter ended 31 March 2004, an increase
of turnover by 22% was mainly attributed to the successful opening

up of Australian market.

During the financial year under review, the Group has attained
ISO 9001:2000 certification. With full implementation of 1SO
9001:2000, the Group wrote-off some obsolete and sub-standard
products. More human resources were dedicated in the provision of
best quality products and services to customers. In addition, we

adopted a competitive pricing strategy, developed and offered a wide
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

range of innovative products to enhance our global presence in the

industry. As a result, gross profit margin reduced to 60% in the year
ended 30 June 2004.

Operating cost reduced by 1% to approximately HK$19,413,000
(2003: HK$19,612,000). More efficient allocation of resources was
applied among the Group. On one hand, the Group increased
investment in research and development. On the other hand, we
carried out cost effective marketing strategy. Moreover, we relocated
the Group’s head office to Kwun Tong with lower rental expenses

but larger floor area.

As a result, loss attributable to shareholders decreased to
approximately HK$946,000 (2003: HK$1,209,000) and basic loss
per share reduced to 0.53 HK cent for the year ended 30 June 2004.

Segment Results
Europe

Europe was the largest market of the Group, whose turnover for
the year ended 30 June 2004 amounted to approximately
HK$8,524,000 (2003: HK$8,610,000) or 28% (2003: 33%) of the
Group’s turnover. During the year, the Group appointed new
distributors in Italy and Spain. Moreover, TeleEye Europe Limited
(a subsidiary in the UK) contributed significant effort in the
provision of technical and marketing support in the region. In order
to capture the local market opportunities, TeleEye Europe Limited

operates as a direct selling office commencing from April 2004.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong was the second largest market of the Group, whose
turnover for the year ended 30 June 2004 amounted to approximately
HK$8,182,000 (2003: HK$8,592,000) or 27% (2003: 32%) of the
Group’s turnover. Although Hong Kong had steadily been recovered
from the impact of SARS, public and private sectors took conservative
approach in capital expenditure. We therefore offered a more
competitive price, wider variety of products and quality services to
maintain the market share in Hong Kong. In this respect, the segment
turnover and result dropped by 5% and 9% respectively when

compared with last year.

Other Asian countries

Turnover from other Asian countries, other than Hong Kong,
for the year ended surged by 31% to approximately HK$8,045,000
(2003: HK$6,147,000) or 26% (2003: 23%) of the Group’s turnover.
The segment reported a profit of approximately HK$1,397,000 (2003:
HK$904,000). The encouraging result was brought by the Group’s
overseas subsidiaries, TeleEye (S) Pte Limited and TeleEye Digital
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited, resellers in Macau and

distributors in Philippines and India.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBt R o

Although the Group’s associate, CAMERIO Japan Inc., recorded
an increase in sales when compared with last financial year, it still
incurred a modest loss. In view of uncertain market condition in
Japan, the Board recognised a further provision of approximately

HK$91,000 for the loan made to this associate.

Others

It mainly represents the Group’s turnover from North and South
America, Middle East and Australia. Comparing with last year, the
segment turnover and result were surged by 84% to approximately
HK$5,707,000 (2003: HK$3,098,000) and 46% to approximately
HK$2,390,000 (2003: HK$1,635,000) respectively. It was contributed
by the new orders made by the Group’s newly appointed distributors
and business partners in Brazil, Canada and Australia. In addition,
existing distributors in Middle East also generated orders at a steady

level.

Prospects of New Products and Markets

The Group has launched various new products addressing to
market demands. The TeleEye Central Monitoring Station software
is a system specially designed for alarm monitoring companies to
provide visual verification and monitoring services. Its powerful
management and logging functions satisfy the stringent demands of
security professional. It is expected to capture a fair portion of the

professional security market.

The Group has launched the TeleEye III+ NF Series Network
Camera. The network camera can directly connect to a computer
network and transmit its digital video to any workstation on the
network. It contains a web server that allows users to use web
browser to view its video through the Internet. The TeleEye III+ NF
Series Network Camera won the Gold award in the 2003 HKEIA
Award for Outstanding Innovation and Technology Products during
the Hong Kong Electronics Fair 2003. This product marks the

Group’s entry into this new market segment.

In a security exhibition held in Dubai in January 2004, the Group
unveiled the latest GSM Mobile Video Transmitter, TeleEye DT-
103G. This product is specially designed for video monitoring
applications that make use of GSM mobile network. Various
government departments, transport and shipping industry are
particularly interested to apply the product in their mobile

operations.

Another member of the DT Series, the TeleEye DT-103P, was
launched in March 2004. This is a self-contained dial-up video
transmitter that addresses the basic phone line video monitoring
application. This low cost product is particularly welcome by alarm
monitoring companies that have hundreds of sites requiring video

verifications.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBt R 4

To strengthen the Group’s existing product line, it has also
introduced TeleEye DM869, a day/night speed dome camera, TeleEye
RM422, a 4-channel standalone digital video recorder and TeleEye
SF310, a CS mount colour CCD camera.

The Group is developing new series of VR and VX Video
Recording Transmitter to meet the British Standard BS 8418, the
code of practice for remote monitoring of detector activated CCTV
system. Compliance to the BS 8418 standard strengthens TeleEye’s
competitive edge in the professional security market. After the launch
of the new series, TeleEye products will achieve a deeper penetration

into the central monitoring industry.

Dividends
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 30 Jun 2004 (2003: Nil).

Employees

As at 30 June 2004, the Group employed 41 (2003: 35) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 14 (2003: 12) full time employees in
the PRC and overseas offices. The Group’s staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and retirement benefits
scheme contribution amounted to approximately HK$12,919,000
(2003: HK$12,610,000).

Employees’ remuneration is in accordance with individual’s
responsibility and performance and remains competitive with the
prevailing market rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical
insurance, retirement benefit scheme and discretionary bonus are
offered to all employees. Share options are granted at the directors’
discretion and under the terms and conditions of share options

schemes.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2004, a non-interest bearing short-term advance
was outstanding to a minority shareholder. The loan was to finance
the operation of TeleEye (S) Pte Limited. There was no drawing and

repayment to this loan during the year.

During the year, the Group mainly used its internal resources to
finance its operations. The Group has available banking facilities of
HK$5 million from Hang Seng Bank and none of them has been
utilised as at year ended 30 June 2004 (30 June 2003: Nil).
Consequently, the Group’s gearing ratio, as a percentage of bank
and other borrowings and long-term debt over total assets, as at 30
June 2004 was approximately 1% (30 June 2003: 1%).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBt R o

The Group had bank balances, deposits and cash of approximately
HK$18,967,000 as at 30 June 2004 (30 June 2003: HK$19,348,000).

Capital Structure

Apart from the aforesaid non-interest bearing advance from a
minority shareholder, repayable on demand and denominated in
Singapore dollars, the Group did not have any borrowings during

the year under review.

There was no change in the Company’s share capital and
outstanding options granted under the Company’s share option
schemes during the year ended 30 June 2004, other than the lapse

of certain share options granted upon the resignation of grantees.

Significant Investment
The Group did not entered into any new significant investment

during the year.

Material Acquistions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Affiliated
Companies
The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposal

of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Charge on Assets
As at 30 June 2004, the Group did not have any charge on its
assets (30 June 2003: Nil).

Future Plan for Material Investments or Capital Assets
Other than those disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated
24 April 2001, the Group does not have any other plan for material

investments or capital assets for the coming year.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges
During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were
substantially denominated in either Hong Kong or US dollars. Since
the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to the US dollars, the Board
considers that the potential foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is limited. During the year under review, the Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes (30 June 2003: Nil).
The Group closely monitors its foreign currency exposure from time
to time and will engage appropriate hedging activities should needs

arise.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 June 2004, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (30 June 2003: Nil).
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Chan Chok Ki, aged 49, is a founder, chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, responsible for the overall
corporate management and business development of the Group. He
also actively participates in the strategic research and development
of the Group. Dr. C.K. Chan is a research veteran in the digital
signal processing and image compression technology. He had taught
at the City University of Hong Kong (“City University”) since 1985
and was a professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering at
the City University before he officially became involved in the
management of the Group on a full-time basis in December 2000.
He is presently an Adjunct Professor of the Department of Computer

Engineering and Information Technology at the City University.

Dr. C.K. Chan is presently the Vice Chairman of the Industry
and Technology Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce and the member of the HKTDC Electronics/Electrical
Appliances Industry Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. Currently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of Shun Cheong Holdings Ltd. He has received
many awards which include the EDN Asia Innovator in 1996 and
IEEE Third Millennium Award in 2000 for his outstanding

achievement and contributions.

Dr. C.K. Chan obtained both his bachelor and master degrees of
science in electrical engineering from The University of California,
Los Angeles. He received his PhD degree in electronics from The

Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 36, is a founder and the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal
processing and telecommunications technologies. He is presently
responsible for formulation and implementation of marketing
strategies, product pricing and positioning, and strategic management

of channel distribution for the Group.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours

and a PhD degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 32, is a founder and the Engineering Director
of the Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the
Group and is responsible for product design, quality control, research
and development of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer

architecture, software engineering and digital signal processing.

Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer
engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in

electronic engineering from the City University.
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Non-executive Director

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 46, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading
the research and development team on a part-time basis with
particular focus on product design and development. Dr. C.F. Chan
is a research veteran in the digital signal processing and speech

compression technology.

Dr. C.F. Chan is presently an associate professor of the
Department of Computer Engineering and Information Technology
at the City University. He is also a director of Signal Communications
Holdings Limited and Signal Communications Limited, both wholly-

owned subsidiaries of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia

Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic

engineering from The University of Essex, England.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Siu Wan Chi, aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently the
Chair Professor and Director of Centre for Multimedia Signal
Processing of the Department of Electronic and Information
Engineering, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was the
Head of the same department and Dean of Engineering Faculty

between 1994 and 2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including guest editor, associate editor and member of editorial board
of renowned journals in the U.S., the UK and the PRC and chairman

of academic/professional assessment panels.

Prof. Siu obtained his master of philosophy degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and the PhD degree from The
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine, UK.

Dr. Liao York, age 58, is an independent non-executive Director
who was appointed in November 2000. He is the managing director
of a private investment and consultancy company Winbridge. He
also serves on the board of a number of public and private companies
in various fields: manufacturing, software, environmental and
investment. He was appointed by the Government to the Boards of
the Science and Technology Park and the Applied Science and

Technology Research Institute.
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On the public service side, Dr. Liao was appointed Chairman of the
Hong Kong Council on Academic Accreditation in late 2003. He is a

member of the Steering Committee on Innovation and Technology.

Dr. Liao obtained his bachelor’s degree in physics from California

Institute of Technology. He received his master of arts and PhD

degrees in applied physics from Harvard University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Wai Kuen, aged 30, is the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Group. He has about eight
years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Prior to joining the Group in May 2004, Mr. Lee had
worked for an international accounting firm and a UK listed
company. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants and an associate member of The Association of

Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Lee Chiu Shing, aged 36, is the regional manager of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 1998. He is responsible for
development of the Japanese market for the Group’s products. He
has over ten years of working experience in the electronics industry,
including stationing as an electronic engineer in Japan for two years.
Mr. Lee is responsible for setting up the operation, staff training,
business development and technical support for the Group’s joint
venture company in Japan. He also takes the position of product

quality assurance manager and is in charge of the quality assurance

activities of the Group.

Ms. Leung Pui Shan, Lydia, aged 33, is the marketing
communications manager of the Group. She has over eight years of
experience in corporate communications, marketing, promotions and
event management. Prior to joining the Group in September 1998,
Ms. Leung had worked for listed companies in Hong Kong and

high-technology fields. Ms. Leung holds a master degree in marketing

from The University of Stirling, the UK.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE & # &
The directors present their annual report and the audited WHMREEEE ZFEMWAENA = HIREE
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004. A YRR E
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEEH
The Company is an investment holding company with its shares AN T — RIE IR A F] - HR A R W W

listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock H A3 T A R B (THize Brl) 2 8120 (Al 2
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The M) b HRR R A R R A R 2 FE R )
principal activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in T A B R B R 13 14 -

notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

RESULTS E M

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2004 are set ALEEEE ZEEZMEANA =T A ILFEEZ ¥
out in the consolidated income statement on page 20. BHE A E 208 2 G G 3R o

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend. AR AT R -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT L E I N & ]

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the AR N A B A L B 2 W) 2 - R st 2 5

Group during the year are set out in note 11 to the financial B I HOR BB R RE 1A -

statements.

SHARE OPTIONS Ji Jz
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out A B A T B SRR S ) 2 R A A i SR B
in note 23 to the financial statements. FE 234
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEEF LA EE
For the year ended 30 June 2004: BEZERNAEARNA =T A IEFEE
(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than (i) REE 2 AREFFAGAEE Z H08ERE
30% of the Group’s total turnover. DI 30% °
(ii)  The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers (i) AR 2 e KA R A K R L E 7 40 il
accounted for 17% and 50%, respectively, of the Group’s AR B B 2 R R RRE (NG04 i B AR
total purchases (not including purchases of items which B2 REBIEE) 2 17%% 50% -

are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the directors, none of the MR E T K HEZHE AL (R
directors, their associates (within the meaning of the Rules Governing Wit 22 JUT 1 BE AR 78 5 b LRI (TR 2R b i B Al )
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the ZEFE) SR R (FEHE A AR S AR A 5% L B
“GEM Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders who owned more than ) A2 A AN A2 [ 2 R A E P R B AT TR RS o
5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in the Group’s

five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS ERREFZIMBE AN

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the A AS S R IR T AR A R B R 2
date of this report were: = R/(T

Executive directors: PATE SR -

Dr. Chan Chok Ki B A A 1 1

Dr. Ma Chi Kit BB L+

Mr. Ho Ka Ho il 5K 5% e A

Non-executive director: FEPATE R

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat PR A 25 1

Independent non-executive directors: WL I AT

Professor Siu Wan Chi IR GE: €5

Dr. Liao York B A vt 4

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of RRABE AR 3 /) 2 20wl B AR A0 I 8 74 > BEAY 5o i

Association, Dr. Liao York retires from office by rotation at the R Bt B AT 2 T R AR R & b (R AT - M
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers We T3 G AR B AT -

himself for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive director is the period HRITER AL ERBEAL A Z A A ER
up to his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s A0 BI) T 4 8 2 HOR AT sl (BB AT R 2 I -

Articles of Association.

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract PATEFXAYEALNRF LA ZEE AN
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1 A—HHAEMZRE G - W25 A8 —4 > HiZ
April 2001, which will continue thereafter unless and until e AWMLY > BEELF Ty oS A
terminated by either party by giving six months’ prior written notice. T EEA - TR o

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy BRAEEE I DO AN A G —IH A R E— 4
agreement with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which PO — F R AW AR 2 R R W o SR > IR
he has agreed to act as a research and development consultant to DA, 2 R MR YR AT A B F 2 W 5 T BRI o
the Group on a part-time basis. The service period of such agreement M IRBHRCER - WS g AE My - |
has been extended and will continue unless and until terminated by FH v — Ty 37 g SR A 2 g AR
either party by giving three months’ prior notice. 1k e

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at B b SCHT PSR AL > 7 Rl B AT 2 TR 4 R
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which o ER A FE - 0 B AR S W) BT S AR
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment 78R R BE R —4F A S o) I B (0% I AE BR A1) T
of compensation (other than statutory compensation). T UKL Z RS H -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS  # = % JB 4y I il JBt HE = i 23

At 30 June 2004, the interests of the directors and their associates A FERENFENH =10 RS LBk
in the shares and share options of the Company or any of its 1] ([3% 25 B A B e i) 1) 56 1 10 B85 7 K 843 #R 7 i
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the A B WA BT 2 e > SR R R R KO B AR
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to 156 35246 i A7 B 2 B s M Fr il - siAR 5 A 260 -
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and THLRIEE 5 46k AR A Al 2 8 5 R 55 2 B N+
8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required pursuant to Section A A2 A AT AR B ik (58 2 I M B 9] 56
352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the T AR EFE) 2 I T R IRRE Hh B A 2 B A
GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock o

Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares B3 b 5
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (a) AR v 6] 4 B 4 0.0 13 J6 2 3% i B
Number of Percentage of
issued the issued
ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of the Company
A OB Ao v AT
HF Lk BBy W B e J A< E Ay B
Dr. Chan Chok Ki Held by controlled corporation (note 1) 104,000,000 57.8%
PR A i il w2l ik AR A (B D)
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat Held by controlled corporation (note 1) 104,000,000 57.8%
BRFE B2 1 w2 il ik AR A (B EED)
(b) Share options (b) 1 %
Number of Number of
share underlying
Name of director Capacity options held shares
HF LA By A R RE S H HH B B 0 e H
Dr. Chan Chok Ki Beneficial owner (note 2) 1,800,000 1,800,000
R A i il R EEA A (M a#2)
Dr. Ma Chi Kit Beneficial owner (note 2) 1,440,000 1,440,000
fg S L A A (M a£2)
Mr. Ho Ka Ho Beneficial owner (note 2) 1,364,000 1,364,000

il R 556 8 B BEAA N (B aE2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS
— continued

Notes:

(D) These shares, representing approximately 57.8% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2004,
are held by Etin City Limited, which is owned by Etin
Tech Limited and CityU Enterprises Limited in the
proportion of 70% and 30%, respectively. Etin Tech
Limited is owned by Dr. Chan Chok Ki, Dr. Chan Cheung
Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr. Ho Ka Ho in the proportion
of approximately 44.3%, 34.3%, 14.3% and 7.1%,
respectively. As Dr. Chan Chok Ki and Dr. Chan Cheung
Fat are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
30% or more of the voting power in general meetings of
Etin Tech Limited, they are deemed to be interested in
the entire shares in the Company held by Etin City

Limited.

2) The share options are granted to the directors pursuant
to the share option schemes adopted by the Company,
details of which are set out in note 23 to the financial

statements.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a
subsidiary held by a director in trust for the Group, at 30 June
2004, none of the directors of the Company nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as described in note 23 to
the financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors,
their spouses or children under the age of eighteen, had any rights
to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any

such rights during the year.

Annual Report 200 4%

O B A B i B HE 2 A — A
Wit -

(1 W EEMAENA =+ - A
2N A OB AT AR 57.8% 2 [ 4y B Etin
City Limited¥ 47 ° Etin City Limited
i Etin Tech Limited }& 3 K 1> 26 B2
28 A3 R4 70% 12 30% Z Ll o
Etin Tech Limited /7 H B 7E 2 1 ~
BRAEBE T 1 - 5 AR 1 Rl K52k
Ay Al £144.3% ~ 34.3% > 14.3% I
7.1% 2 WWOVER o f1ik BRAVE R 1 1 &%
W FF 3 1 RE A IO R & A7 el
FE il 47 #30% 5% LA | Z Etin Tech
Limited 2 # 5T HE - 800% 45 w45 AF B
A T £ #H Etin City Limited$F 4 482
A Z B e

(2)  HEHER IR SRR AR 2 R R A 2
S I R BTS2 - A R O SRR T I 2
W1 RO P AR B RE23 o
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S 03 F5 A 1 B T 2~ 7 2 AR N A > i & F
PWAERA =+ H » ARF ZEHBPFE BB A
o 37 48 7 AR 2 ) ECEL AT AT A B O B AT A e
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE ~ # H /¢ T % & 4 Z F 25

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding TEAS AT [ S 45 57 lC7E AR 4 5 AT AT IRE [ > AR 2
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a ﬁ%%%ﬂﬁmfﬂ:/\ﬁj ~ HPE A A sl H A AT B
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or B AT S HETSLZ AR E A A H e E
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the e A AT A R A 45 o

year.
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FER R

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed W b 3 [ 3 357 Bt B I I i 22 HE 2 | — B Tk
“Directors’ Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of AN s A EFENAENH =T H > AN A

substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to HR4E 785 75 A B W 19 55 33605 T ZE A7 B 2 T B IOR
Section 336 of the SFO discloses no person as having a notifiable RO T P EE o N BT AR N A AR A R 2 B BT
interest or short position in the issued share capital of the Company JB A b A AT AR RE 45 SR A o

as at 30 June 2004.

COMPETING INTERESTS Wi e A

The directors believe that none of the directors nor the EHAAE - AN A A TS R I I OR (A
management shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM MR bR 2 e 28) IR A A BLAS A B A SERS bt
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may Fok e g AR B A LR L RT 2 EHEA T

compete with the business of the Group. I HE 45 o
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS 15 S Ji ' e
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the AN R 2 TR AN R s BE 2 T e 1 ) £ 4 ot i

Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, BREZ R E o B AR R ZE AR L) 1) B B R AR
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata T B A o

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’'S EHEHBEEIAA R 2 LHi#EH
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries RASEEBE N > A2 A s AT An] B 2 A i
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities. B B AN A Z AR B e

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AN SC
The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June BEZEEZWEANAZTHILFERER - A2
2004 with the corporate governance matters as set out in Rules 5.34 — A8 R AN ZE AR b LRI RS 5 347 5. 45 Tl 2

to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules. AEIRHEHE -
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EEE€ H 4%

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has two members comprising two
independent non-executive directors, namely Professor Siu Wan Chi

and Dr. Liao York.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, half-yearly report
and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comment thereon
to the board of directors. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting

process and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee held four meetings during the year ended

30 June 2004.
AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of

the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Hong Kong, 10 September 2004
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AUDITORS' REPORT #% & fi 8 &

Deloi
e o I tte o ®REY - WERSSFENT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

BEBPRTHEPI15R 26/F Wing On Centre

/E L2261 111 Connaught Road Central
TIE\ Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED BT HLHR 95 B A B 2 | R
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (4 B 52 B 5 5 M 7 19 7 IR 23 7l )
We have audited the financial statements on pages 20 to 55 AAZ W E 58 A TR S 20 R 5B 55 L IR &

which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles &R PR A g R R T AR R R R R -
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors WA R 2 A
The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of SN g TR N N AR DS

financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing oo EMmMBZELHBEA T2 MBI ER - EF
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental D5 ZH B UL PR A 2 g EHBUR o

that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied

consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based AW 2 AR AR A AL TAEZ &5 20 > B
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion GEMFMBEREB LN > WRBHEWEZE
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of TG SR A 1) R R A R o T R NI I AR A
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume FE o A AZ BT AS & 0 AR R A 28 BT A oA A
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the TR BESREEFAL
contents of this report.

Basis of opinion p= T

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of 7R A R T i BR A R R R & T A A 2 A
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified WE BT B WA A TAE o oA T AF 8 1B A3 435 LAl
Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, 7 7 3 A B B S i 3R A T A% R e P R R I
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial RN T | A R i o N TR U
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates 2 IRF TR th 2 2% TR AN AR R A 5 3E H
and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the iz gRtBRESE S BAR K BEHE
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are ZAB DL o B A RO E NI A A B R % S e R
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, B -
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the AT BT L ) BT AR AR RS S RIS —
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order I8 2y Wb 2 EORE I R 2y HOBE > e AR 2 BT e
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance B 2 R M E B IR KRR T A EE
as to whether the financial statements are free from material ZEE RO > VR A B EE o AR I R
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall 7 BRI NI Al 1 % 4 T R 3R N T 2 R AE
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial B8 R R - AZEETARGE - AN Z WA LA
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis O A7 B o S S I B o
for our opinion.

Opinion =
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁ?ﬁ%,ﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁéi@ﬁ%gﬁiﬁ%iﬂfi
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 30 June e EAR K EEMR CEENENA=Z1TH

2004 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then Z AR R E R B LA BB EE R
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the By i 0 4 BEAE R 20 RG] 2 49 8 R T %

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. HimE o
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Ty o R B 7 & ut B AT
Certified Public Accountants S ES N

Hong Kong, 10 September 2004 T > “EFFNENH]TH
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For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — F X475 A =+ H IL4F

Annual

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #Z& W & &

Report 200 4%

2004 2003
—EBWE BB
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
it it T#0 T ¥t
Turnover E X 30,458 26,447
Cost of sales 45 A (12,303) (8,531)
Gross profit E 18,155 17,916
Other operating income LA #6455 e A 5 351 435
Distribution costs 41§85 W AR (7,281) (7,436)
Administrative expenses A7 B2 (6,630) (7,434
Research and development expenditure  iff 5% & %% J& 3 i} (5,502) (4,742)
Loss from operations 2% i 18 6 (907) (1,261)
Finance costs B 5 2 - 1n
Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary i 8 Bff J& 2 = 3 43 #iE 15 2 5 48 (€)) -
Loss before taxation I B T i 1H 91D (1,272)
Taxation B IE 9 21 (30)
Loss before minority interests 1R 7D B e SR 2 T R 1 (890) (1,302)
Minority interests D BT B HE i (56) 93
Loss attributable to shareholders Ji B8 A5 s 48 (946) (1,209)
Basic loss per share 5 JB Tk AR s 4R 10 (0.53 cent il (0.67 cent fil)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET &2 8 8 EAE X

At 30 June 2004 A —~EEPLENH =+ H

2004 2003
—RBNE SEE=
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Mt 7t T T ¥ T

Non-current assets e B G E
Property, plant and equipment W~ BB KRk 11 1,236 888
Capitalised development costs 5 R AR E A b 12 2,018 3,035
Interest in an associate /N P 14 - —
Investments in securities EERE 15 3,674 4,588
6,928 8,511

Current assets i B & E
Inventories & 16 7,139 4,604
Trade and other receivables R WAL FH 2 B L At 8 iz K 17 2,228 2,333
Taxation recoverable aJ i [m] A TH 22 =
Amount due from an associate JRE Wi Wt 2 A ) 2 I 18 409 414
Bank balances and cash SRAT &S B KBl & 18,967 19,348
28,765 26,699
Current liabilities i B £ R

Trade and other payables JRE A R R B HC At JRE Ao R 19 3,483 2,501
Amount due to a minority shareholder — JEAT 2 B 3 3K IH 20 332 325
Amounts due to directors JRE A} 3 F5 K IH 21 87 347
Taxation payable JRE A5} B IH - 31
3,902 3,204
Net current assets i B & E A 24,863 23,495
Total assets less current liabilities HEE 2 W B A 31,791 32,006
Minority interests A B R 25 87 167
31,878 32,173

Capital and reserves B AR R it
Share capital i A 22 1,800 1,800
Reserves Gl 30,078 30,373
31,878 32,173

The financial statements on pages 20 to 55 were approved and 20 F 55 2 BA % R AR S g it R X T 4E JL
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 September A+ B RAZRETED » Sl N E R REF
2004 and are signed on its behalf by: FEE

DR. CHAN CHOK KI Bl 4 %&£ 18 1+ MR. HO KA HO 1 58 2 56 4
Director # H Director # H
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BALANCE SHEET EE & & R

At 30 June 2004 A —~EEPLENH =+ H

2004 2003
—kBNE  SEE=A
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
itk T Tl T

Non-current asset IR W =
Investment in a subsidiary R A R 2 K E 13 10 10

Current assets i B E
Other receivables HC At 18 Wi 2k 66 58
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wi BfF a2 ] Sk IE 21 18,758 17,559
Bank balances SRAT 45 R 6,413 7,838
25,237 25,455
Current liabilities i B £

Other payables At 78 A 3k 806 791
Amounts due to directors JRE A} 3 g5 Bk IH 21 87 347
893 1,138
Net current assets i B & E A 24,344 24,317
24,354 24,327

Capital and reserves B AR R it
Share capital i A 22 1,800 1,800
Reserves Tk 24 22,554 22,527
24,354 24,327

DR. CHAN CHOK KI Bl 4 %5 1% 1+
Director # H

MR. HO KA HO fi 5K 3¢ Jfg 4
Director #
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY e EZE B X

For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — & X475 A =+ H 1L 4F

Investment
Share Share Translation revaluation Special
capital premium reserve reserve reserve Deficit Total
# &
BeA MefrdRfE BESLAEME EAGGEM HERIGEAE Jies A Rt

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T T T T T T T T T T T T

At 1 July 2002 A RE I
+tH—H 1,800 21,605 (59) (578) 14,990 (4.024) 33,734

Exchange differences [ 5 i 5 3£ 15
on translation of B E T E AR

overseas operations 2 [ b2 i = = (29) = = = (29)
Revaluation of fA R E

investments in

securities = = = (323) = = (323)
Net losses not 3 o AE i £5 2% W

recognised in the it 78 2 i 18

income statement AR - - (29) (323) = = (352)
Loss attributable Ji R A s 4R

to shareholders = = = = = (1,209) (1,209)
At 30 June 2003 N S

NH=1H 1,800 21,605 (88) (901) 14,990 (5,233) 32,173

Exchange differences [ 5 i 5 3£ 15
on translation of Z HR H T AR

overseas operations . [ 5t 7 B = - 7 - - - 7
Revaluation of HAEHERE
investments in
securities - - - 644 - - 644
Net gains not AR A Wi 45 R A
recognised in the it 78 2 i 18
income statement T #E = - 7 644 - - 651
Loss attributable Ji R E A s 4R
to shareholders - - - - - (946) (946)
At 30 June 2004 A R AR
NH=1H 1,800 21,605 (81) (257) 14,990 (6,179) 31,878
Attributed to an U5 H s A H
associate: ZHE g
At 30 June 2004 A TR A
and 2003 =
NH=1TH - - (99) - - (961) (1,060)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between 7 4L B 2 R A T HE AR R R — 4R H
the aggregate of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries A7 58 T o 40 IR Bl A 2 B 2 W G R A T
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in April 2001 and the B N W) BEAT R AS AR £ Wi AR A 2 T B T o 2 2

nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company as o

consideration for the acquisition.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 2 B &€ R

For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — F X475 A =+ H IL4F

2004 2003
—kBNE  SEE=A
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#T T ¥ T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES FSE -
Loss from operations FEE g R =] (907) (1,261)
Adjustments for: R B IE B AE e

Interest income FE I A (196) (281)

Dividend income from investments in securities RR AR E 2 B ERA (139) (119)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment E & Pk 597 613

Amortisation of capitalised development costs B A E AR AL 2 8 1,606 1,456

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts SRR B 66 57

Allowance for loan to an associate T E A W B 91 131

Allowance for inventories 17 & Bl 188 125

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  H&EWE ~ W5 Kk 2 k5 1H 57 -

Exchange differences on translation TE 57, 2% Bf 6 (40)
Operating cash flows before movements in BERERBHZ

working capital K8 BB & 1,369 681
Increase in inventories 7% 22 8 (2,723) (1,575)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables JRE iz B K K At E Wiz i A (B ) 39 (551)
Increase in amount due from an associate R WA W 7 A ) 22 K TE B (86) (152)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables JREASF B K K HCAth JE ) k8 i () 982 (629)
Decrease in amounts due to directors JHE A5} 5 5 2 I b (260) (24)
Cash used in operations JRE RS 56 78 26 2 Bl 4 (679) (2,250)
Interest received B A B 196 283
Overseas tax paid E A A1 B IE 3G9 (8
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES JRE R A8 36 2 Bl i A (517) (1,975)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B& EW
Proceeds received upon maturity of Fi i 23 2 5 e 2 2 1

held-to-maturity debt securities BT B S 2 K IAH 1,558 —
Dividend income received B i B Bl A 139 119
Proceeds on partial disposal of a subsidiary H A5 BB 2 R S 4 HE 4 T AR 2 AROH 24 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEA W - R Bk i (996) (436)
Increase in capitalised development costs BE R AN AL 1 (589) (1,193)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING BH ERR) #E EHZ

ACTIVITIES B4 136 (1,510)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES % R B
Repayment of bank borrowing 15 7 SRAT 45 K - (208)
Repayment to a minority shareholder IR D BUR R 2 #5K - (16)
Interest paid £ A FE - 2)
New bank borrowing raised I SR AT 1 K - 208
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES JRE JH % il O S 2 B 4 - (18)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND Bl B B 4 55 W D

CASH EQUIVALENTS (381) (3,503)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT T 4E W0 B B4 B B4 S

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 19,348 22,851
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TN AR H B B4 T B A S

AT END OF THE YEAR,
representing bank balances and cash (B SRAT &5 88 K Bl 4) 18,967 19,348
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf %% 3§ 3 fff 5t

For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — & X475 A =+ H 1L 4F

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding
company is Etin Tech Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in

notes 13 and 14, respectively.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time,
the following Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
(“HKFRS(s)”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The term HKFRSs is inclusive
of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP(s)”) and
Interpretations approved by the HKICPA.

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 12 (Revised)
“Income taxes”. The principal effect of the implementation of
SSAP12 (Revised) is in relation to deferred tax. In previous
years, partial provision would be made for deferred tax using
the income statement liability method, i.e. a liability was
recognised in respect of timing differences arise, except where
those timing differences were not expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future. SSAP 12 (Revised) requires the adoption of
a balance sheet liability method, whereby deferred tax is
recognised in respect of all temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, with limited exceptions. In the
absence of any specific transitional requirements in SSAP 12
(Revised), the revised accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively. Comparative amounts of deferred taxation for

the year ended 30 June 2003 have been restated accordingly.

— B IH

7y FAE B 2 1 S SR S A A PR A R - T
H By s T Wk G 28 5 BT A BR 7 ([ W 32
Frl) RISEM (TRIZEN]) B » HE&HERA
) £ Etin Tech Limited > — % i 95 & JE & #f
B ([ REEL MR EMi sz Ad -

RN T By — RGN T > H g A 7 %
Wit 28 8 \) 2 E B S oy Al O B sE13 K 14 -

PR A A s S s e A e

AT AL E KRN F1 ih A
il 2> g ([ 7 s & w2 8 1) MR 2 75 #0855
ot vE R ([ o B i Y B D) o 7 i B S
ot E ) 2 ARk 2 O & H RS YE R (T &t
HHHER]) Kk B o WASH & wh o et
HE o

JAARAEJE o AR 4R ) BR A & SRR E RIS 120
(REAERT) TPTA3BL]) - B & wHE B RIS 12
o (BEAERT) 2 £ B BT BUREBLIAA B -
T A A B A A Bl JEL TS R Wi AR R B AR I
PR T 0y 45 > B0 H B IR ] 25 52 1) 8 Al R
7 B (i 55 105 ] 28 52 UM N e fE vl 2
A [ B S0 o B E S ME ISR 1246 (¢
ERT) L RE ZHER 4 EE B RER A S > BRA IR
i 1 S DLAN - A SE B TH TS % B B Rk SR P S
B K B R Y AR T B A RROBL i A e
R B S R T AR Y 2 B T AMERR o
98 A | w R R B 120 (BB RT) A AT o]
5B B EE R - HUILREFT 2 & 5 EURTE
JER R BB W - BRIE > R TR =R
A=+ H I EZRERIH L WiIRE T &
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified for revaluation of investments in

securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The

principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30

June each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Turnover
Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold, less returns and allowances, to outside customers

during the year.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the

principal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual value, if any, using the

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 33'5%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Office equipment 20% — 33'/5%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf %% 3§ 3 fff 5t

For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — & X475 A =+ H 1L 4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Property, plant and equipment — continued

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the

income statement.

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project
will be recovered through future commercial activity. The
resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its

useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

balance sheet at cost, less any identified impairment losses.

TR A BOR —

Wk ~ W Rt — A

R B i B A T E AR 2 Wi R AR R R
B B TS A H SR T (E 2 2= R AN
A R A Wt R A
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W JE 3 Bl 2 52 0 7 L A 2 30 ] 7K e i 4 2
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R B8 32 1 4 Bl 7 6 7 2 2 T ¥ £
& TE TE I C O R A E TE H T E A B R LA
365 5 1 2 5 ) A R o
B A 2 W A 2 B L T G )4
g -

i X7 0y R S E A 2 MR E AT T DL RR
R B8 o S o ot 7E HG 7 A 2 0D T oA e R 4 2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results of its associates for the year. In
the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated
at the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates less any

identified impairment losses.

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis

and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting date, debt securities that the Group
has the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity
(held-to-maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised
cost, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable
amounts. The annual amortisation of any discount or premium
on the acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated
with other investment income receivable over the term of the
instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period

represents a constant yield on the investment.

All securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities are

measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised gains
and losses are included in net profit or loss for the period. For
other securities, unrealised gains and losses are dealt with in
equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is included in the net profit or loss for the

year.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are dealt with

in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf %% 3§ 3 fff 5t

For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — & X475 A =+ H 1L 4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Foreign currencies — continued

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred
to the Group’s translation reserve. Such translation differences
are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which

the operation is disposed of.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it

further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Taxation — continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow

all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.

Operating leases
Rentals paid and payable under operating leases are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over such term of

the relevant lease.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
schemes, state-managed benefit schemes and other retirement

benefit schemes are charged as expense as they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf %% 3§ 3 fff 5t
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that geographical segment by location

of customers is its primary reporting format.

Geographical segment

The Group reports its primary segment information by
geographical location of its customers who are principally
located in Hong Kong, other Asian countries and Europe.
Segment information about these geographical markets is

presented below:

4. IriERE

HRPEAS 4R B 2 A 0 o 5 22 4k 7 3> AR H R
FE LAV 2 B 7R H 43 iR A 2 O 2 B
e

Ho i 43 6

AL EF &P EEGREE - i
i T ) 2 2 T
RE o DU B 4% bk B 4 2 T 2 4
Bk

2004
—EENE
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
HAl
&k RIS Bk Al E<f ey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
T T SR SR T T SR T
TURNOVER B ¥R
External sales MR
28 8,182 8,045 8,524 5,707 = 30,458
Inter-segment sales A 2 8 - 1,404 859 - (2,263) -
Total turnover MEERE 8,182 9,449 9,383 5,707 (2,263) 30,458
SEGMENT RESULT Vst 3,909 1,397 2,113 2,390 (229) 9,580
Unallocated PN D]
corporate income AF A 351
Unallocated PN D]
corporate expenses NEE
— Administrative and — T B R A
other expenses 4l (5,336)
— Research and — 5%
development X i
expenditure (5,502)
Loss from operations KEER (907)
Loss on partial disposal 6 B N R A A
of a subsidiary [ Eva 5 4)
Loss before taxation I B i s 48 (911)
Taxation BiH 21
Loss before minority il 4
interests 1 43 i i 4R (890)
Minority interests DY 4 (56)
Loss attributable to i R Al s 4
shareholders (946)
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 4. SPEERL— M
Geographical segments — continued M [ 43 #B — A
2004 — continued BRI - H
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark- 53 BB [A] 2 85 5 J2 4 BUAS I B — A Oy b v A wE
up. H o
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment PATR £y ¥ % 5 r A6 Hh @ 8] 53 2 40 58 6 A I oy
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical BB B 2 MR TH B 2 4 BT

location of its customers:

Other Asian

Hong Kong countries Europe Others Consolidated
H Al

i 1 B R B H Al A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
TiT Ti#T TiT Ti#T Ti#T

ASSETS K
Segment assets O E 384 2,318 1,030 51 3,783
Unallocated corporate assets A< &4 /A &) & 7 31,910
Consolidated total assets BAMEE 35,693

LIABILITIES fifk
Segment liabilities A 088 388 280 196 1,852
Unallocated corporate A B T AR

liabilities 2,050
Consolidated total liabilities % & 42 & & 3,902

Other Asian

Hong Kong countries Europe Others Corporate  Consolidated
ity
i S K B Aty AF o
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
T T T T T T
OTHER INFORMATION L fs & B
Capital additions EARE = 86 26 = 884 996
Depreciation i - 92 31 = 474 597
Development costs BERMAEA
capitalised - - - - 589 589
Amortisation of capitalised % J& B A & A<
development costs ba 1 - - - - 1,606 1,606
Allowance for bad and AR B
doubtful debts 66 - - - - 66
Allowance for loan to HTHENR A
an associate Bz B = 91 - - - 91
Allowance for inventories 7 & ffi = = = = 188 188
Other non-cash expenses Al 3 B 4 % = 3 8 - 50 61
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 4. EER — M
Geographical segments — continued H [ 43 #B — A
2003
CERER=A
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
HAl
&k RIIE PR ¢ KAl E<f ey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
SR SR T T SR T T
TURNOVER B EH
External sales M
ZHiE 8,592 6,147 8,610 3,098 = 26,447
Inter-segment sales GBI 2 6 - 1,167 - - (1,167) =
Total turnover BEEH 8,592 7314 8,610 3,098 (1,167) 26,447
SEGMENT RESULT Vi 4310 904 2,458 1,635 - 9,307
Unallocated PN i)
corporate income AF A 435
Unallocated PN D]
corporate expenses NGk 4]
— Administrative and — T B R A
other expenses %R (6,261)
— Research and — 5%
development Bl
expenditure (4,742)
Loss from operations B E R (1,261)
Finance costs MHE R (11)
Loss before taxation i B i s 48 (1,272)
Taxation BiH (30)
Loss before minority il 4
interests 1 43 i i 4R (1,302)
Minority interests R R 4 93
Loss attributable to i R Al s 4
shareholders (1,209)
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark- 53 BB [A] 2 85 5 J2 4 BUAS I B — A Oy bE v A wE

up. =
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 4. SPEERL— H
Geographical segments — continued M [ 43 #B — A
2003 - continued ZER=H-H
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment PUTR 2y ¥ % 5 r A6 Hb @ 8] 53 2 40 58 6 A I oy
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical BB B 2 MR TH B 2 43 BT

location of its customers:

Other Asian

Hong Kong countries Europe Others Consolidated
Aty
i S K B iy o
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T T
ASSETS K
Segment assets O 537 2,169 997 22 3,725
Unallocated corporate assets FE A A K E 31,485
Consolidated total assets 4 & & 35,210
LIABILITIES fifk
Segment liabilities A 710 330 215 161 1,416
Unallocated corporate A B T AR
liabilities 1,788
Consolidated total liabilities %% 44 & & 3,204
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others Corporate  Consolidated
Aty
B S K B iy AF o
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T T T
OTHER INFORMATION L fs & B
Capital additions BEARE = 219 24 = 193 436
Depreciation G - 45 26 - 542 613
Development costs BRMAEAL
capitalised - - - - 1,193 1,193
Amortisation of capitalised % J& B A & AL
development costs ba 1 - - - - 1,456 1,456
Allowance for bad and AR B
doubtful debts 54 3 - - - 57
Allowance for loan to HTEHER A
an associate Bz B = 131 - - - 131
Allowance for inventories 17 & # ffi = = = = 125 125



Annual Report 2004%F #H TeleEye Holdings Limited
F B B # B B R 2 7
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %% % & M{ 5
For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — & X475 A =+ H 1L 4F
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 4. AR — 4

Hi it 43— A

PUTR 7 4% 6 BT 78 i [ ) 73 2 53 0 A B
¥ PR M R BT WA B R A
SR T (B 2 S A o

Geographical segments — continued

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and
capitalised development costs analysed by the geographical area

in which the assets are located.

Additions to
property, plant
and equipment
and capitalised

Carrying amounts development costs

VERN VTS

of segment assets

4 7 2 W T A HBERRAEARILZKE
2004 2003 2004 2003
“ERRNE “EE=HF ZRRNE “EE=HF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T 7T T T 7T
Hong Kong R 32,741 33,053 1,473 1,386
Other Asian countries A & i B % 2,001 1,937 86 219
Europe kM 929 220 26 24
35,671 35,210 1,585 1,629

Business segments SEH 4

A R FALAE B R A WP S B
S BT o PRI - AR BT A 2

The Group is solely engaged in research and development and

sales and marketing of audio and video monitoring systems.

Accordingly, all of the Group’s turnover, contribution to loss B KBRS E R B E O AR ET
from operations and assets were attributable to this business #B o
segment.
5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5. AR E WA
2004 2003
—2RNE —gE=g
HK$’000 HK$’000
i T
Other operating income is analysed as follows: HA WA Z i
Interest income from W E AT E Z ALE A
— bank deposits —RITE A 172 211
— investments in securities, net of amortisation — WA BE > 0k
of premium on acquisition of approximately i 18 2 #8885 40 1,000 7T
HK$1,000 (2003: HK$2,000) (ZF%F =4 1 2,000% ) 21 67
— loan to an associate — & TEE AR Z B 3 3
Dividends from investments in securities JA T F 4% 2 R 139 119
Others HAts 16 35
351 435
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6.

200 4%F |

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 6. HEEH
2004 2003
ZRERNE — =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Loss from operations has been arrived £ s 1R
at after charging: S
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments B TR A (45 H i 4) 12,364 12,093
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR R AR A T A R 555 517
Total staff costs H T8 A 58 12,919 12,610
Less: Amount capitalised as development costs W A AR A B R R A
Z K IH (589) (1,193)
12,330 11,417
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts IR AR 66 57
Allowance for inventories A7 55 1A 188 125
Allowance for loan to an associate AT MR A A B R S 91 131
Amortisation of capitalised development costs BE R WA E A AL 2 5
included in research and development (B F AW 5% B 8% Je S i)
expenditure 1,606 1,456
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B4 BT P <5 249 246
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W ME T I 597 613
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment & ¥ 2 - &5 MK s i < 518 57 -
FINANCE COSTS 7. WMEHEEH
2004 2003
ZRERNE TR AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Interest on FIE
— bank borrowing wholly repayable within — AR AN BE R
five years SRAT (3K - 2
— advance from a minority shareholder wholly — R B — > HUR R
repayable within five years AR N A BUE R 2 B - 9

11
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. #HHKIEEME
2004 2003
ZERFNA R
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T ¥ T
Directors’ fees: EHMWE
Executive HLATE S - -
Non-executive AT HE F - =
Independent non-executive WL I AT E 160 160
160 160
Other emoluments for executive and AT M IEBATERHD
non-executive directors: Ho At P 4> -
Salaries and other benefits 3 4 S Ho At 4w A1 3,527 3,527
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR AR A FE 3 A K 36 36
3,563 3,563
3,723 3,723
Emoluments of the directors were within the following bands: Pl <& 7E DA # E 0  E SENBnR :
No. of directors
EE YN
2004 2003
—RBNE SEE=
HK$1,000,000 or below 1,000,000 7T 8% LA T 5 5
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 %5 7T % 2,500,0004% JC
The four (2003: four) executive and non-executive directors AR\ A (R =4F 0 U A7) $47 M9
received emoluments of approximately HK$2,016,000, ITEFABE FFMAE KR =4 NN
HK$732,000, HK$628,000 and HK$187,000 for each of the two =+ Bk AR AR R 45 B IO T 4 23 A A
years ended 30 June 2004 and 2003. Other than a fee of £452,016,000% JC ~ 732,000% JC © 628,000%5
approximately HK$80,000 for each of the two years ended 30 JC 52 187,000% 7€ o BRARE —F R PUE T —F
June 2004 and 2003, each of the two independent non-executive FZAENH = HIEWAAEE S A Z 8545
directors is not entitled to any other emoluments from the 80,000%s JLAb - MAZ MW L IEHATER LAY

Group. 7S RE M B S 48 | 2 AT ] LA P 4 o
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For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — F X475 A =+ H IL4F

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8.
— continued
The five highest paid individuals included three (2003: three)
directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2003: two)
individuals, which fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000
for each of the two years ended 30 June 2004 and 2003, are as

follows:

Annual Report 200 4%
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R R B — A

RV EREHA LT AfFAATF 2 =
L (R =4 L =) B > B LG
A B BN TN o HEBRm (SRR =AFE W
1) N R EE R PUAE e BT = AF N H
= H R W AEELSE NS N TSR
1,000,000% 7 > #EE AR -

2004 2003

—kBWE  SEE=A

HK$’000 HK$’000

T Fil 5t

Salaries and other benefits 3 4 S Ho Ath 4w A1 1,095 1,021
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR R A F FT )R K 90 82
1,185 1,103

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2004 and 2003, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

In addition, no director waived any emoluments during the
years ended 30 June 2004 and 2003.

WE BENER BE=ENA=+H I
TR A 47 BE 2 45 8 4 BE I - 7S 4R 0 Sl 0 1) A3
T 4 B e 0 N b (G 45 88 55 ) S AT fa 30008 1
KW 5] I AE N i A S A I 2 % B sRCAE A
A B T 22 TR i TS5 Bh B A A o A o 3
EoRFNER_FE=HAA=THILE
JEE R0 37 91 AT A S S ik HE A Ao I 4 o

9. TAXATION 9. BiH

2004 2003
—kBWE  SEE=A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T

The (credit) charge comprises: BOIE (K ) 3 AL HE -

Taxation outside Hong Kong 7 Wk DL S 2 Bl IE

Overprovision in prior year A AR AR B R A 2D =
Current year AR - 30
2D 30

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group incurred tax losses for both

years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

H A A 4 ] A0 T 8 4 52 1A 2 BB TR S
18 5N S A S AR S A o A AR

A At ] 3 B i A AR 2 B IE T A B D i
Ry R T i
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For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — & X475 A =+ H 1L 4F

TAXATION — continued

The (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss

before taxation in the consolidated income statement as follows:

9. PiIH — 4

AR A s R TP AS AR JE 2 BLIH (FK4) 37 i B
R B Al s 1R 2 BIAR AR

2004 2003
—REWE —xE=g
HK$°000 % HK$’000 %
T#T T

Loss before taxation I B Al s 1 (911) (1,272)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate A 0 i 1 BB %17.5%

of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) (ZF%F =4 1 17.5%)

Al H B (159) 17.5 (223) 17.5

Tax effect of expenses that are not AR AT B 5

deductible for tax purposes 2B 82 9.0) 17 (1.3)
Tax effect of income that is not R BLIA

taxable for tax purposes 2B (59) 6.4 (69) 5.4
Overprovision in respect of prior year R A A R A A (21) 23 - -
Utilisation of tax loss not previously B) A 1 o R R

recognised 2 B 31) 3.4 = =
Tax effect of deferred tax assets not 7 T o0 0 A B

recognised 2B 167 (18.3) 306 (24.0)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Wi Ji 2 ) 464 FE T 2 A

operating in other jurisdictions AIEHER LR 2 - - (1 -
Tax (credit) charge and effective tax BLIE (K ) =2 B

rate for the year VNGl S 21) 2.3 30 (2.4)

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 25.

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on a loss of
approximately HK$946,000 (2003: loss of HK$1,209,000), being
loss attributable to shareholders, and 180,000,000 (2003:
180,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No disclosure of diluted loss per share for the years ended 30

June 2004 and 2003 is shown as the effect of the potential

ordinary shares outstanding would result in a decrease in loss

per share for both years.

0% SIE B TH 2 1 O M 25 o

10. 43 B B A 48
B JBE R A i 15 T AR 5 R 1R (B I R B A e 4R)
#1946,000% 76 (. FF = 4F @ 5 #11,209,000
W I0) S A N B AT 4 1% 180,000,000/%
(ZERE =4 1 180,000,000/%) 51 H -

WEBBNER -BF AN =00
1 4 1 I 0 5 G 0 0 L 8 R R
FLATVEAE S B 2 B BEAT U R S B T
{8 4F JEE 2 45 B HRBR D
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. W > WFE Kk

Furniture
Leasehold and Office
improvements fixtures equipment Total
L85 ) 2 AL B /N
*1x KHE WM R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T
THE GROUP A 45 [
COST B AR
At 1 July 2003 e S
tH—H 327 513 1,956 2,796
Exchange adjustments [FFE 5, ] % - - 11 11
Additions B 394 50 552 996
Disposals fab {5 (254) (135) (18) (407)
At 30 June 2004 A Y A
NH=+H 467 428 2,501 3,396
DEPRECIATION i g
At 1 July 2003 A T AR
tH—H 227 326 1,355 1,908
Exchange adjustments TFE 52, 38 - - 5 5
Provided for the year 74 B R R 142 65 390 597
Disposals H & (224) (115) an (350)
At 30 June 2004 A Y A
NH=+H 145 276 1,739 2,160
NET BOOK VALUES R TG VM
At 30 June 2004 A Y A
SNH=TH 322 152 762 1,236
At 30 June 2003 e S
NH=+H 100 187 601 888




Annual Report 2004%F #H TeleEye Holdings Limited
F E B £ R A B 2 7

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf %% 3§ 3 fff 5t

For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — & X475 A =+ H 1L 4F

12. CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 12, BRI AE AL
HK$’000
T
THE GROUP A 48 1|
COST BA
At 1 July 2003 W oEE=ZFLH—H 5,529
Additions B 589
At 30 June 2004 AZERFMENH =1 H 6,118
AMORTISATION i &
At 1 July 2003 W EEFE=ZFLH—H 2,494
Provided for the year 7R AF B R 1,606
At 30 June 2004 AZEEFMENH =1 H 4,100
CARRYING AMOUNT R e -
At 30 June 2004 AZERFMENH =1 H 2,018
At 30 June 2003 A EERE=ZFENHA=1H 3,035
Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using i 58 2% B Y BE R AR o TE B R EE A Y
the straight-line method over three years from the T EPS BB Ga 4% - DL E AR ey - BESS I 5
commencement of the commercial phase of the products =45 o
developed.
13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 13. e A w2 88
THE COMPANY
A 4 ]
2004 2003
ZRERNE — =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T ¥

Unlisted investment, at cost I EHEE > A 10 10
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For the year ended 30 June 2004 # £ — F X475 A =+ H IL4F

13.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — continued

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2004 were

as follows:

13. 7 FfH G 23 7] 2 B8 — 4
ATEEMAERA ST H o A A R

ZREMN

Proportion of

Place of Issued and fully nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up ordinary issued capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HA A A
C#RT R A O8BAT
il R L SR A/ G B A Z
W J 2 ) 4 B Bggms  BAGEMEA THi B 7 4 o EEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# IH] #%
% %
Signal Communications BVI HK$15,000,000 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited S T 15,000,000 76 BB R
SiCOM China Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
o B e B
SiCOM Europe Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
iR e B 1% B
SiCOM Far East Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
iR e B 1% B
SiCOM Japan Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
o e B 17T B
Signal Communications Hong Kong HKS$1,000 - 100 Research and development
Limited H 1,000 70 and sales and
Al B BB A BR 2 ) marketing of audio
and video monitoring
systems
EE R R A 2 W7 K
B I g 1 K i o 4 SR
TeleEye Europe Limited The United Kingdom GBP100 - 90 Sales and marketing of
3 [ 100 9% 8% audio and video
monitoring systems
RBEEERGZHE
T 117 355 4 Ji
TeleEye (S) Pte Limited Republic of S$1,000 - 51 Sales and marketing of
Singapore 1,000 il 3 7C audio and video
LIRS monitoring systems
REEERS
S 1 T 5 4fe SR
T IR s B 5 () The People’s US$130,000 - 100 Production, sales and
A FR 2 (Note) (Hfat) Republic of China 130,000% 7T marketing of audio and

(the “PRC”)
e N R AL B
(T EY])

video monitoring systems
BLEB R R R A2 RE K
9 B 4 TR
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13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - continued 13. FAHHE A~ 7 2 88 —
Note: The company is registered in the form of a wholly owned foreign Bt © w%O A LA A R SN G A 2 Uk o
enterprise.
During the year ended 30 June 2004, 10% interest in TeleEye BEZERPEANH = FHILEER - A5
Europe Limited was disposed of at a consideration of [ 5 £ 1A TeleEye Europe LimitedZ 10%7H#
approximately HK$24,000, resulting in a loss on such disposal i o ARAE ) 5 24,0000 70 - B R% B T A B
of approximately HK$4,000. Z G 14 54,0008 T ©
None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital outstanding at T A A % A IRF B AR B 22 AT n] IR TH] A AR i
the end of the year or at any time during the year. B J 2w A AR AT SR B R 2 [ AR o
14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 14, I 2 W] Z B A
THE GROUP
A< 45 4
2004 2003
ZERRNAE ZEREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Share of net assets of an associate JRE A B i N W) 2 - =
Details of the Group’s associate as at 30 June 2004 were as R EEMEANA =10 - AEBZBEA
follows: AREN AR

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation issued capital
Name of associate and operation held by the Group Principal activities
H A 42 1]
[y A HFHEZ OB
Tk 2 W 2448 T £ 8 H J JBe A< i A Ay o TR
CAMERIO Japan, Incorporated Japan 49% Sales and marketing of
A 7 audio and video

monitoring systems

HEEREAKZ
45 K i 2 HE TR
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 15. #HF"E
THE GROUP
A< 45 M
Held-to-maturity
debt securities Other securities Total
frf 2B R 5 oAb 5 sk
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
“RENE —ZZ =4 RN —ZZ =4 RN —ZZ =4
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
T#x T T#x T T#x T
Listed equity securities Bk bl
in Hong Kong i A< 78 %5 - - 3,674 3,030 3,674 3,030
Listed debt securities KB 2 bl
in the United States %
of America - 1,558 - - - 1,558
- 1,558 3,674 3,030 3,674 4,588
Market value EiiE 4
of listed securities ZTifH - 1,564 3,674 3,030 3,674 4,594
16. INVENTORIES 16. 78
THE GROUP
A< 45 M
2004 2003
ZRERNE — =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tl T
Raw materials JE R} 3,525 2,271
Finished goods AL 3,614 2,333
7,139 4,604
Included in the above are raw materials of approximately LU E#717,0008 70 (. F F =4 :© 27,0004
HK$17,000 (2003: HK$27,000) and finished goods of g6) 2 Bk K #)241,000 I0 (—F F =4
approximately HK$241,000 (2003: HK$110,000) which were 110,000 %6 76 ) 2 $4 5 i LA A 54 B & 2 1F(E )

carried at net realisable value. iR o
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. M OB sk B L At JE sk
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its AEEFHHE THEGEF=THZES
trade customers. e
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of JARE WA e 3 e At i 3 45 R Wi B AR KK
approximately HK$1,375,000 (2003: HK$1,642,000). The 1,375,000% 76 (ZFE =4 : 1,642,000
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the balance JC) o AN H 8 R B IR B A R H ) 2
sheet date prepared on the basis of due payment date of sales HESHE Z BRER Ar BT an T
invoice:
THE GROUP
A< 45 M
2004 2003
—kBNE  SEE=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Current B3 £5) 3k 1,025 1,532
1 to 3 months overdue w1 ZE 38 H 324 56
More than 3 months but less than i 6 At 3 R A {3
12 months overdue TE1218  PAIN 26 54
1,375 1,642
18. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 18. M WCIgh 2 A ] Z K 0E
THE GROUP
A< 45
2004 2003
—kBNE  EE=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Loan account AR IE 92 183
Trade account 2 5 iR IE 317 231
409 414
The loan account is unsecured, bears interest at 1% per annum B TE o MR > 4R B 2y 19 S ZH # B ORI
and is repayable on demand. The trade account is unsecured, % > 1T ) R T HI) 2 e IS4 e AS B RS
non-interest bearing and the Group allows an average credit A B8 T L 6 6 T Aa T T 8 B 2 S 2 A R A

period of 45 days for sales made to the associate. F45H o
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18. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE - continued
The following is an aged analysis of the trade account at the
balance sheet date prepared on the basis of due payment date

of sales invoice:

18

- R A R Z K — A

TR e 505 9 00 K 0 2 e
S 2 B 5 WETH 2 W B 42 BT T

THE GROUP
A% 45 [

2004 2003
SERBNE  SEBEA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Current B[HA A 3 317 73
1 to 3 months overdue 1% 3 A - 158
317 231

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. JE A B sk o 3 At JE A5F K
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of B AT e 3 e At A 3 6 456 TR A B 5 AR KK
approximately HK$918,000 (2003: HK$408,000). The following 918,000# 7T (&3 =4F : 408,000%7T) °
is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date A &AL A T SR 2 B AN K H B 2 Sk
prepared on the basis of due payment date of supplier’s invoice: YESHE Z ARER AX BT N T
THE GROUP
A< 45 M
2004 2003
—kBWE  SEE=A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#C T ¥t
Current BPHA A 3 754 326
1 to 3 months overdue 1% 38 H 146 37
More than 3 months but less than i 1 3R T (R
12 months overdue TE1218 H PAN 18 45
918 408
20. AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER 20. FEAF A 8B Ak =
THE GROUP A 48 1
The balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is repayable 2 AN R Ay SEARAR - R PR S B ZE e R
on demand. &3 o
21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES/TO DIRECTORS  21. J& W Fif & 24 =] 5k 38 & M £+ # =5 3% 1

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are

repayable on demand.

A 4R R A A
R AR SRR AN B A B B R e SR i

g -

i
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22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. A
Number of shares HK$’000
J¥ 1 5 H Tt
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 5 JRTHT (B 0,019 T 2 5 4 ik
Authorised: HE A
At 1 July 2002, 30 June 2003 ATEFZAELA—H -
and 30 June 2004 “EF=ERNAZTHEK
ZEFNEANH=TH 800,000,000 8,000
Issued and fully paid: AT RS R A
At 1 July 2002, 30 June 2003 ATEFTAELA—H -
and 30 June 2004 “EF=ERNAZTHEK
ZEEFNEAH=TH 180,000,000 1,800

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)

The Pre-IPO Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 12 April 2001 to recognise the contribution of
executive directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries to the growth of the Group and/or the
listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM. The options
granted under the scheme grant the right to the holder to
subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company at
HK$0.60 per ordinary share and the maximum number of
shares in respect of which options might be granted under
the scheme was 14,400,000. The number of shares in
respect of which options might be granted to any individual

was not permitted to exceed 3,600,000.

Options might be granted without any initial payment.
Options granted are exercisable to the extent of an
aggregate total of 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% at anytime
after 6 months, 18 months, 30 months and 42 months,
respectively, from the commencement of the trading of
the shares of the Company on the GEM, and have a

duration of 10 years from their respective vesting dates.

Upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM on
8 May 2001 no further options could be granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme. The rights of the
holders of the share options granted prior thereto are not
affected and such options granted continue to remain valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the

scheme.

23. JiE A St

(i)

TR BE T SRR St ([ M3t T PR ] )
AN FRER ZFE—FEMN A ZHE
W 2 — TH YLk 2 PR AN 48 R A R RE S
B DA AR AN | T L S\ 2 AT
W N AR B A W 2 ) K s
A B A A A ZE AR b AR 2 B R A
0 o RIEFEEWE B RE B T R A HE FI
AT 4% A A A 10,60 5 TG RB AR A Bl 2
T T AR R R B AT TR 2 R
WEW T 2 e [ 3 H 514,400,000
o AT AT AR N 2 B A 2 i )
H A a] 8 ##%3,600,000/ °

Wi JISE W A 7 R S AN AT AT 400 25 I 22 1 L
TATBSR ] T A% o W R RE A AR A T % £
AR ZE A BE 4f B AR o W 4 BITE N R
)= I nANG = I o = 19 L1
Z AR ZATRAT IR A > NE R T AT G 2 Ah
W B HE R B Z 25% 0 50% ° 75%%
100% ° 7% 55 R JRHE | & B AT AT (2 H 41
A FE AR N AR o

B A w3 R FE I H N H A
A6 AR BT AR > AR IR A AT R RE R
B > A FE AR PR I RCRE T AE
AL DA M8 5 1 IR HE 2 1 A N BT 55 2 W
AP  RIEET 8 2 G
S5 TR 22 S R K 4T3 SR AT 28I W] A
T8 -
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 23. i Ji b Gt ) — A
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) () FH B E I A S ) ([0 wi s e st )
— continued |
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TRBEEARE R ZAFER RN
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme during the years AEZNH = H R AR R AR 5 3 IR T B
ended 30 June, 2003 and 2004: REGT B A< A =) 2 Wi I RE 2 5 8 5615
Lapsed Lapsed
Exercise price Balance at during Balance at during Balance at
Date of grant per share 1 July 2002 the year 30 June 2003 the year 30 June 2004
Bl REEE noEE= RoEEmE

T e e EA-H  REERE  AAZHH REERE AAZTH
it A fTHE WERZWBE KRWHEE MBZWEE KAZWHRE e ERE

HK$ (note) (note)
4 TT (Wit (k)
Directors of the Company
KRRz ES
Dr. Chan Chok Ki 12 April 2001 0.60 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
B AF £ 1 £ it 3 S5
WA+=H
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 12 April 2001 0.60 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 - 1,440,000
5 B < S
WA+=H
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 12 April 2001 0.60 1,364,000 - 1,364,000 - 1,364,000
LFETT et
WA+=H
4,604,000 - 4,604,000 - 4,604,000
Employees of the Group 12 April 2001 0.60 9,120,000 (1,628,000) 7,492,000 (1,220,000) 6,272,000
FAEEEA —ZZ2
WA+=H
13,724,000 (1,628,000) 12,096,000 (1,220,000) 10,876,000
Note: These options lapsed upon the resignation of the grantees. Bif Gt - O A M TR RE AR AR R N BEAT A2 R -
No options had been exercised since the date of grant. At B8 F AR S e R R HE AT A o A
30 June 2004, the number of shares in respect of which CEERNAESNH = H > AR TS
options had been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme JRE 5 4% i 22 W A 2 I 00 B B A %
represents 6.0% (2003: 6.7%) of the shares of the Company H AR A 5 2 8847 IR 156.0% (= FF =

in issue at that date. o 6.7%) o
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
(ii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 12 April 2001 (the

“Option Scheme”)

The Option Scheme was adopted on 12 April 2001 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees for a term of ten years. Option may be
granted without any initial payment and should be
accepted within 21 days from the date of grant. The
subscription price, subject to adjustment, is the highest of
(i) the nominal value of the shares of the Company; (ii)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
GEM of the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet (“Daily
Quotation Sheet”) on the date of grant; and (iii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Daily Quotation Sheet for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

The option holder may subscribe for shares in the
Company during such period as may be determined by
the directors (which shall be not less than three years and
not more than ten years from the date of grant). The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued share

capital of the Company from time to time.

No employee or director shall be granted an option which,
if exercised in full, would result in such employee or
director becoming entitled to subscribe for more than 25%
of the aggregate number of shares for the time being issued

and issuable under the Option Scheme.

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the
Option Scheme was terminated. No options had been

granted since the adoption of the Option Scheme.

23. Ji JBe Al wH A — A

(i)

RRZE AR A+ H R R
A1) (T 0 P e - 34 1)

Ao FEI SR F AN A O H R A
Betstdl EEA W SN ER G H
MR B PR UL SE M - A RN 5+ AF o B
HEAE S A SASAE AT R TE 22 A% DL T A3 88\
T o AR H IR E21 H R B2
Ao SRR AR (n] T 9 28 5 2 (DA 7 ik
BYTIE 5 (iDAS 2 T A TE 3t 1 30374 B
22 BT A 26tz B H OO AR ([ 4 H R
) 2 Wi WAE 5 R (i) A A R A AE
R W B AT I 22 5 B R 4 H R AE
Fe B YT (= DL e R
M) o

Wi RO 47 A7 N AT 7E | o 7R E e S )
] A R AS o R 2 ey (25 BT A
500 8 b H R F = AR H AT
TAE) o RZAF R 2 IR HEW K 2 i
JBe oy B > AT AT B 40 IS AN A5 3 AR 2 ]
E T Z210% °

i I B B HE T S v AT IS v A K
7% 55 R B CEE A A R AR R S M
BIE RO BT TRIT G EE S
REE25%F o BN 15 16 1 S % 0 i
HE o [ bR AR REHE ST 3 DA AR 2y ) I A
1 i B e A

WRER —FF=F+A A AH@EBZ
RS o IERMERT B O AL o B BRI
JBE A w0 LA S Sl e 432 11 M PR e o
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23. WEIRRESHH —
(i) B FRZ44ATH S )VH R 2 R

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
(iii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the

“2003 Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the
2003 Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and
motivate the contribution of the employees to the Company
and to provide incentives and help the Company in
retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees for a term of ten years. The board of directors
of the Company may at its discretion grant options to any
employees, including executive and non-executive
directors, advisers, consultants, agents, contractors,
customers and suppliers of the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company. Option may be granted at a
consideration of HK$1 and should be accepted within 5

business days from the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on 28 October 2003. No
option shall be granted to a grantee if the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted under the 2003 Option Scheme
in any twelve months period up to and including the date
of grant to such grantee would exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being in issue.

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Daily Quotation Sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Daily
Quotation Sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share. Without prejudice to the generality of the above,
the board of directors of the Company may grant options
in respect of which the subscription price is fixed at
different price. No option has been granted under the 2003
Option Scheme since adoption and up to 30 June 2004.

BEEE & ([ % 2 =4 R pE 58 )
REER —FE =4+ /NN HEHZ
RS > AN E RN TR A I R
wEE > Rl DURE RS X B) IR B AL R
HER > W m AL FBA R R & T 8%
Wy - DA Bl 4 B A AT o DA R B AT
M EZBEIMER o AAFE RGN
% 1) A AT R B35 i S TR (L 45 A< 4R
CHITEFREATESF EX - W
M~ ACEE ~ R R~ A K (R P DL
O AR 2% E A o W S HE W DL AC R
JLIR o M ZE AR H O R A
EHMER -

A T R 2 e B BOE > AR
BEANTFR _FE=44+H _+/N\H
Z BT 2 10% o A 75 A AT + AR
RN g S S PNIE R ]
(BFZH) Ik BB G RARE =%
Z = AR I R R R Rt TR 2
B E A (o IR T R AT 2 B R
A A 2y ) R LB AT IBOR 21% > JIR
25 RIS g A R -

PHEE AR DIR T I =Z 2 BREE ()
AN E R R B GBS 5 B ) 48
B F SR 2 TR AE G A A R
16 BB H AT M A2 5 H R A B
8 3% 2 7 ¥ e T W AE 5 sk G Oy
- EABRE X BRI » &
7 ) 2R g T DA AS [ R R R
B2 WERHE - B H RSt E S =%
FPAENH =Z+FH > B TR A
Ji RE 1 ) AE 4 42 I RE o
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

24.

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the
income statement in respect of the value of options granted in
the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their

exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding

23. Ji JBe Al wH A — A

L 152 S e HE 2 A 5 2 288 NI Bk 7 AR 2 )
WAL EE AL BT
ks T WA R A O A R AR T
fEAE 2 B 32 o 157 I MESEAT (4R > A2 AL
4 [R] M 1 BE AT 2 e 2 PR A5 T (L W Bk 27 RELA D
JBeA 5 S BB AT fo A e 4 i (L 2 2
FO Sk P B0 (B MR T o A B B BE AT 0 i
L 8 B 2R A0 T T % i oA A 0 T PR
B e

options.
RESERVES 24. Gk
Share Retained
premium profits Total
JB O v A i B8 ¥ A1 i
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
THE COMPANY YNNI
At 1 July 2002 Hh_EE HEELEH—H 21,605 859 22,464
Profit for the year 7R AR i Y ) - 63 63
At 30 June 2003 W ERE=ZFNHA=1H 21,605 922 22,527
Profit for the year 7 4 BE Ui A - 27 27
At 30 June 2004 AZEEFMENH =1 H 21,605 949 22,554

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to its shareholders as at 30 June 2004 comprised
share premium and retained profits in aggregate amounting to
approximately HK$22,554,000 (2003: HK$22,527,000) provided
that, after distribution, the Company will be able to pay its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

ANFHBEFBL - R EEMENHA =+ A
ENNCIRTN RN S e = X MR i R
T AR s ) & 3L 4 £522,554,0000 00 (ZFE
=AF 122,527,000 00) > ME AR 7 AE IR A 4% 51
ZEA A e A A% S AR B RO AR B
fIEE > A IRAT -
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25. #E %€ B IH
TH B EAEEFORAEE > OMRZ EE
WAL BLTE Bl OF ) N H 48 #rell

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

years:
Accelerated  Capitalised
tax development Tax
depreciation costs losses Total
1973
IMEBIEITE A E AL i e 18 Fk i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
THE GROUP A AR
At 1 July 2002 AZFER_AEELHA—H
— as previously reported — fn 5L 2 51 - - - -
— adjustment on adoption of — DRI BR 40 & 5 s e
SSAP 12 (Revised) 5 120k (K84E7T)
1M F i} A % 82 528 (610) -
— as restated — W E 5 82 528 (610) =
(Credit) charge to income statement AR FE 2 Wi 43 R
for the year %Jr)\ 1 BR (60) (46) 106 =
Effect of change in tax rate GRSy a2
— charge (credit) to income statement — A s & AR (FEA) 8 49 (57) =
At 30 June 2003 and 1 July 2003 ATERERZAESRNH =1 H
k—ZFZ=FtH—H 30 531 (561) -
Charge (credit) to income statement A 25 2 R (FEA) 41 (178) 137 =
At 30 June 2004 AZFEZNENA=Z1H 71 353 (424) -

At 30 June 2004, the Group has unused tax losses of ATFFEENA =0 - AL B AT AR AR

approximately HK$6,730,000 (2003: HK$6,729,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$2,427,000 (2003:
HK$3,209,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to the remaining unused tax losses of
HK$4,303,000 (2003: HK$3,520,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$277,000
(2003: HK$192,000) that will expire in five years’ time since
the date of losses incurred. The remaining tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2004, the Group has other deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$36,000 (2003: HK$6,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

B R AR s Az v R B OB S R A &
6 730 L0008 06 (= FE =4 16,729,000

ZIK%@TJEEZ%EEGJEWW& Zz@ﬁﬁlﬁfé‘
?‘ #) Ky 2,427,000 JC T xR ZAFE
3,209,000%7C) ° EBJ?H% \HHUK{ﬁfF'J )
%J‘tﬁﬁjtﬁ“TZ ﬁﬂ%@jﬂﬂﬂ%%}éﬂﬁzﬁ
4,303,000 70 (ZFF = 4F : 3,520,000% 1)
T 8 Ly R JE Bl JEUE o ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ 2 o TH Ji5 15
Z R #1277,000%5 76 (— FF = 4F : 192,000
W o0) i B OEA KR H IS > 3R R B AR
A 7 48 o R 2 Bl TH 5 48 T T 4 PR &
Zg L

ATEEPAENH =1H ZIS%@ZEH;T
0BT IRF 25 BE 4 55 36,0009 70 (B K = 4E ¢
6,000%5 70) ° H HA TE AR A ME SR B Vi A nT
E IR Dt R T = R @ A
AT 10 U6 IR 2 A e R 0 Ak Bl JE G E o
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in

future years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute 8% of the
basic salary of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit is to make the specified

contribution.

In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit
schemes, the subsidiary in the United Kingdom and the
subsidiary in Singapore are required to contribute, respectively,
to National Insurance Contributions and Central Provident
Fund Scheme for certain of its employees in the United Kingdom
and Singapore based on applicable rates in accordance with the

relevant government regulations.

The total cost charged to income statement of HK$555,000
(2003: HK$517,000) represents contributions payable to these

schemes by the Group in respect of current accounting period.

26. B kA8 A 51 H

T T 2 WA > ] 22 BELAR B R o kS AR
I 0 M A RE B FOR R A ([RAR & &
B o AR B 2 E AR 2 E
BFRE A - 1A 48 B 2 & 2 R RO B — 2
AR REN A B e o AR PR R A R A A
ZRUE o R E KR B & A AR A E 2
bl eI o At v R < w0 T S AR AR T RUZE A%
8 7 4 BT ZEL 8RR o AR 4 1 NI 4 W AR
FI AR AR AR A 3t R 2 R

A S R b R 2 B s R 2 AR B B R R
BARE A FH 2 8 > % Et # o R R AR
o R 2 W ZH 4% R B AR B B 2 8%
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27. OPERATING LEASES 27. BEMH L
THE GROUP
A< 45 M
2004 2003
SRBNE  SEBEA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Minimum lease payments made under operating  JA 4% 4F JB 4 Hi §5 48 & FH 49
leases in respect of premises during the year Y EE AT 2
e I FH 4 FH &2 1,218 1,560

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows:

RS o AR SR kAT B A 36 2 A T IRUTE AR
5 AH A0 T ZE A R AR ST A < B IR AR A A 4 2 K
W EH B E

THE GROUP
A 48 1|

2004 2003

—kENE  SEE=A

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#T T# T

Within one year — 4R 882 293
In the second to fifth year inclusive B R A

(B W4 GImEN) 1,914 -

2,796 293

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for office premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals

are fixed for an average of three years.

The Company had no significant lease commitments at the

balance sheet date.

FEAS 2 K8 FH &9 FH S 48 A 52 H 2 e =) 26
A2 g o A B [ 5E T T3 = AE i E
— K o

RN MR I N RO
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28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. H AR
THE GROUP
A 48 1|
2004 2003
ZERFNE —ERF =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#oT T# T
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition W B ) 2~ R S T R A
of property, plant and equipment contracted (ERT# > (HiHRTE
for but not provided in the financial statements B R N ) 2 R S - 27

The Company had no significant capital commitments at the

balance sheet date.

AN TR &5 F A A O A R

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. BARHAM
At 30 June 2004, the Company had an outstanding guarantee A EEMEANA =10 - AR L — KB
issued in favour of a bank of HK$5,000,000 (2003: N F MR 2 — SR AT Rl & BRI — SR AT R Ik
HK$5,000,000) for securing general banking facilities granted 5,000,000%5 7C (%% = 4 : 5,000,000%% T)
to a subsidiary. The subsidiary did not utilise any of these WOk o IRAEEH - R% B JE 2 W S 4% B AT fef
facilities at the balance sheet date. I S SRAT Ml & o
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the PN S A v MR L N = R =
balance sheet date.
30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BEANLZS
THE GROUP
A< 45
2004 2003
—kBNE  EE=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T ¥
Sales to an associate (note i) Iw] B 2 N F BN B (M i) 801 739
Interest income from loan to KB THEARAERZ
an associate (note ii) F B W A (Hf 7Eii) 3 3
Service fee to City University I A R Bl T B (T3 K ) S At
of Hong Kong (“City University”) (note iii) R s 2 (f atiii) 37 33

CityU Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned

University, holds a 30% interest in Etin City Limited, a

substantial shareholder of the Company.

Notes:

(i) The selling price was determined by the directors with reference (1)
to prices for similar transactions with unrelated third parties.

(ii) Interest was charged at 1% per annum.

(iii)

determined and agreed by both parties.

The transaction was carried out in accordance with terms

subsidiary of City

2 7
Wit -

e 5 0 17 i 4 o
i) 8 8 4E 10671 5 <
(iii)

54 Etin City Limited (4 A &) 2 E 2 R HRZ
—) 30% M A 2 WK AR A IRA B B IWOR 2 A2

RIS IR = T UL S 28

2 5y T 1% W e A 5 i E B[R] T 2 AR O AT -
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RESULTS E¥
Year ended 30 June
BEAHA=1H L4
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
TR RE A DREFTAE CERBF ZRFNS
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T o0 T o0 T o0
Turnover & 16,440 18,471 17,005 26,447 30,458
Profit (loss) before taxation  F&# A % Al (&518) 5,413 1,876 (5,064) (1,272) (911)
Taxation (charge) credit BiIE (32 H) 5 % (875) (298) 589 (30) 21
Profit (loss) before 1 B A OB HRE 5 AT
minority interests i A (5 18) 4,538 1,578 (4,475) (1,302) (890)
Minority interests D B R HE 4 - - 76 93 (56)
Profit (loss) for the year 784 B i A (5 18) 4,538 1,578 (4,399) (1,209) (946)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES o Kk AR
At 30 June
WAH=1+H
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

CEFFE CFFE CFF U CFFSF FENE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T ¥ T ¥ T ¥ T Tt

Total assets HE E 20,760 43,022 37,509 35,210 35,693
Total liabilities HEE (15,763) (4,348) (3,841) (3,204) (3,902)
Minority interests D B R HE 4 = = 66 167 87
Shareholders’ funds RO 4 4,997 38,674 33,734 32,173 31,878
Notes: Mt -

@)) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 August (1) AR E] i AR FARE N H AP H iR B = R

(2)

2000 and became the holding company of the Group on 11 April
2001 as a result of a group reorganisation (the “Group

Reorganisation”) in April 2001.

The results for each of the two years ended 30 June 2000 and 2001
and the assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2000 have been prepared
using the merger method of accounting as if the group structure
immediately after the Group Reorganisation had been in existence

throughout the years concerned.

RS S % % 4 P A7 4 T AL ([ 4
L)) 50 = %% —4E0 A F— R Ak 4
2P AT -

(2) BE LT LE R T —FNA =+ H WA
FEREAZERINR _EERFEAA=ZTHZE
2 K BRI R kG O Oy s AR R > A BB AR
42 [ TR AR AR 4 B A N ELAE A B AR BE B -
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